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oo soarobing.  Though paved, the road remz:ins narrow and winding and is
lined 11ith large old trees. The houses are mostly set well back from the
road and, for many of them, the stone gates are all that is visible from the
road. Thsre is a very small shopping area near the center of the district
which contains ths post office. At this point there is a crossroad and it
is along this north-south road and the east-west roads intersecting it that
th2 houses of Flat Rock are scattered. Few ars close to each other or even
visible to each other but they are all closely tied through social and
fapily bonds. Highland Lake is east of the hizhway and roughly near the
ceuter of the district.

s oy ws ol s rosd uo o medantain (rom

The typical Flat Rock estate consists of a major residence set amid a
complement of dependencies on a site chosen for its favorable exposure.
There does not seem to be a typical Flat Rock style, bub most reflect an
extended association with wealth and taste. There is a wide stylistic ranne,
from Federal through Greek and Gothic Revivals, Second Empire, and Stick-
style, to the Neoclassic Revival style which appsars frequently. In many
cases, smaller early houses ware grandly overbuilt.

In addition to the major estates there are simpler structurss, no less
important to the overall picture of Flat Rock; included among these are the
0ld post office, the mill, and various smaller cottages dating LrOm.m1d~
ninsteenth century to well into the twentieth century.

Above all elss, Flat Rock is characterized by peaceful, uncluttered
roads; large open spaces interrupted only by tree-lined drives and walks;
and the near absence of commercial intrusion among the wooden and stone
fences and ummarked gates which lead to many of the concealed great housss.
There has been some intrusion of commercial and residential developments,
especially to the north. This intrusion has excluded from the district one
of the larger estates, Brooklands. ©Not all structures or even estates have
baen mentioned specifically, since this is such a large district, but those
mentioned have besen selected as being most prominent or representative of a
type or style found in Flat Pock.

A numbsr of the most outstanding buildings are listed chronologically
below; the numbers refer to ths map key list, which also includes several
other structures of secondary significance individually but important to
the district as a whole.

Vountain Lodge (1).

it the northarn end of t”a Iat Rock Historic District is the first of
1he s mmer hores, Mountain Lodsze, which i1s a much alterzd [Gve-bay square
house2 witlh a sharply pitchad h¢p roof piercad by gable and hin dormsrs. An
ambitlous two-story, columnad morch wravs arowsl much o the housa, and
large wing extends to theg south; both are recent additions. Tdﬂ nousa re-
Luine moch of its Fedaral tric, including n espacially interasiing front

. trecca, mantels, and stair.  Southwest o the house 1+ an aloﬁfmted
ontaonal structure featu-ing -ocd Fedoral itrin which arpears v Lisrsd.

336

SNOIFTLONYLSNI




Form 10-300a UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE
(July 1969) o NATIONAL PARK SERVICE North Carolina

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORICPLACES |counTY

. Henderson
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM FOR NP USE only

ENTRY NUMBER DATE

(Continuation Sheet)

[ (Covrniier gl wneziay)

, o

There 1s a stone well house on the west side of ths housa.

Argyvle (2).

Near ths southern end of ths district, easily seen on the east side of
the road, is Argyle, a two-and-one-half-story, five-bay, main block with large
flanklng, two-story wings which are two bays wide and two rooms deep. A two-
story porch carries across the entire length of the main facade, including
the wings. A central chimnsy and three dormers pierce the roof of ths main
block. Opening onto the first floor porch are bays which at first appear to
be nine-over-nine sash windows with panels below; however, the bottom sash
and the panels below combine to function as a door. Variations of this theme
occur at several Flat Rocl homes and will be referred to as window-doors.
Though the house is heavily altered on the first floor, the sscond-floor
interiors of the main block retain, almost untouched, their late Federal trim.
The attic of this large house contains several elements of early fabric.

A large number of outbuildings range to the rear of ths house. Of
particular interest are ths kitchen and a storage building with delicate
scroll-sawn bargeboards and queen pins-at the gable ends.

St. John-in-the-Wildsrness (3).

Near the center of the district in the heart of Flat Rock is St. John-in-
the-Wilderness. This gable roof brick church is six bays long and three wida.
The main (east) facade foatures elaborate bargeboards outlining the splaysd
gable with a wide band of applied fretwork above a sawtooth border. This
gable treatment recurs on the several secondary entrances. Buttrassad at the
corners and between the side bays, the structure has at its southeast corner
a three-story, square tower with pyramidal roof. The main entrance is through
this tower. All openinzs are surmounted by round arches, and the side windows
have unusual bhlinds sach of which covers ths entire window but hinges at the
point where the arch begins.

The interior is dor’nated by a double hammer besam truss system which
springs from turned colurmns. These rest in turn on a wide shelf whose face 1s

covered with horizontzal =heathing covering from windew sill to floor. The
pews ars enclossd along ’he bottom with quatrefoil-patterned pansls, which
also agpsar on ths low 7 door's There are several mamorial stones along

the church wall includi g those for Charles and Susan Baring.

Tha graver-rd su rsr?djng the church ic well kent and has a numher of

fine iron feno::. i coavestones of most o the esvly prominent family namss
of Flat Rock arz nd caong the ivy and grnass coverzd gravas, shaded b largs
evergresn and hqrdwood 17288,
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Beaumont (6).

Bazaumont, a two-and-one-hal{-story stoene housa, is near the wasternmost
point of the district and is surrounded by a proliferation of unusual lawn
furniture. A Stick-style renovation greatly expanded the house and changsd
its appearance inside and out. The large entrance hall is Neoclassic Revival
in style and gives access to a dining room, which is Adamesque, and a parlor
which has a large, Baroque mantel. The ceiling of the parlor is molded plaste:
with interlacing geometric pattsrns in low rslief. :

EJ

Tall Trees (Greenlawn) (22).

Tall Trees, located on the highway in the south portion of the district
(across the road from argyle), is a two-story, five-bay frame structure with
dzlicately bracketed eaves bsneath a hip roof. A commanding portico, supporteg
by six Doric columns, has bsen added to ths full length of the main facade.
Window-doors open onto this porch at the first level. The center hall stair
1s Greek Rovival in style and is similar to several found in mid-nineteenth
century housss of Flat Rock, as are the architraves and mantels. A large
four-leaf folding door separates the parlor from the hall.

Many Pinss (16).

Many Pines, near the east boundary of the district, is a two-and-one-halft
story frame houss, threse bays wide and three desp. Its pyramidal roof is
pierced, front and rear, by dormers with Palladian-shaped windows and on each
side by a single dormer near an interior chimney. The front porch and porte
cochare are an airy composition of delicate latticework arches, spindlework,
and other wooden ornament. Large bays with mansard roofs project from both sidl
of ths house near the front corners.

The interior follows a center hall plan, two rooms deep. A Victorian
marble mantel appears in the parlor, and ornamental fire backs and hearth tile
are found throughout the house. The houss also contains unadorned wooden door
knobs. Also of interast are ths outbuildings which range to ths rear of ths
house, including a rcs of ssrvants' quarters, a carciage barn, a cottags, and
various supply, storajs, and vtility buildinzs.

T3

Chantelope (11).

i

At “he nortiusrn oad of thy district is Chenteloupe, a large, rambling,
two-and-tne-half-stery house of wicoursed siore, which is situated on a rather

steap hi®l with terracad gardens above and 2l tha house. The extensive
gardens - re said to have basn dasigned by Trederick Law Olms*ed. It appears
that lhe central thr«:-bay, two-story, hip-:o0f secticn of thg house 1s the
nucleus o which largs wings, each ecual to or largrce than the original

(O

structurv, were addsc in the twantieth cent xy.

PG 9P1.7¢5
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Dominating the central hall is a cantilevered stair which rises near ths
front door along the east wall and turns gracefully to pass just across the
largs fanlight of the rear door. An especially intsresting feature of the
Fedsral-style stair is the concentric volute of the first two steps with tha
balustrade ending its graceful downward flight on the second step which re-
peats the volute of the handrail.

0ld Post Office (15).

The 01d Post Office, located near the center of Flat Rock, is a small
frame building. It is two stories high and four bays deep, and its three-bay
gable end sits almost flush with the highway. Below a gable of flush sheathing
is a two-story shad porch which protects the large six-over-six sash windows
flanking the second-level door. The second-~floor porch has a scroll-sawn f
balustrade. At the first level, the typical Victorian door is flanked by
large four-light windows.

Tensriffe (1L).
Teneriffe, west of the canter of the district, is a circa 1850, twe-and-

Tudor Revival house. Its renovation appears to have bean influenced by
Biltmors Village, as were several of the older houses of Flat Rock.

St. John-in-the-Wilderness Rectory (17).

St. John-in-the-Wilderness Rectory, Just south of the church, is a one-
ard-one-half-story, T-shaped, stone house with a high pitched roof which con-
tains a finished attic. From the front door the hall runs east-waest through
the house with one room on the south and two on the north. A partially
enclosed circular stair with a curious, crude balustrade rises in the hall.

Rutledee Cottage (7).

Rutledge Cottage, at the south end of the districth (near Argyle and
Kesmure), is a one-and-ona-half-story house with a steep pitched roof. Tha
entrance is in the center bay of the threz-bay east gable end and is protected
by a £rall gabls hocd. The two-bay sides have matching, hip roof porches
protecting the sastarnmost bays. The north side is mors elaborately treated
with two large window doors at the first lsvel and twe large dormers flanking

smallsr cns,  Grezeful, scroll sawn bar:abosrds relicwa the soverity of the
“tles while thz s2ves are finishad with » simole, inverse scallop pattern.

e dntsricr has a very narrow ceater hall plan two rowuss deep. The Federal
rvle stair with a turnsd newel rises near th2 rear of the hall. The mantels
z12 simple, with marble cnes beiry usasd i the north r.oms of the first floor.
Ty kiuwchen, ssveral feet northwast of th- house, is &« one-story, thrsa-bay,
bord-and-batten structurs with o central chivmnay. 11 13 now a guest housz.

&
£
7
S5
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Dunroy (10).

Dunroy, basically a T-shaped, ons-and-one-half-story Gothic cottage which
has Leen heavily renovated, sits well back from the road on a pleasant, wooded
risa. The house has handsoma scroll sawn trim at many of 1ts numerocus gables.
Cf special note inside Dunroy is the Greek Revival stair and an especially
fine Adam-style mantel said to have been taken from nearby Mountain Lodga.

To the roar of the house is grouped a particularly interesting collection of
mid to late nineteenth century outbuildings.

Woodtield Inn (Farmer's Hotel) (12).

The Woodfield Inn, one of the most visible landmarks of I'lat Rock, is
south of the Post Office. It is a three-story, hip-roof, frame structure with
a two-story, hip-roof porch running the length of the main facade. The
building, which faces eact toward the highway, is seven bays long and four
bays deep. Bargeboards ornament the eaves of the main block and recur on ths
porch which has graceful latticework arches on the second level. Six-over-six
sash 1s found at most windows except at the porches where there are window
doors. '

\

Traholm-Rhett House (13).

The Treholm~Rhett House, the easternmost house in the district, began
about 1850 as a two-story, three-bay structure with a central entrance and
pedimented gables. The frame building was later expanded about twice its
original size into a U-shaped house with the main entrance centered in the
hase of the U. The entrance is protected by a classical portico supported by
four square pillars.

Kenmare (Glenroy) (9).

Kenmure, which facss Argyle from far west of the highway, is a two-story,
three-bay frame house with a low hip roof surmounted by a square cupola with
a corresponding roof. Th2 parspsted porch, a recent addition, has fluted
Doric columns with a poriz cochere on the scuth side. The first-floor windows
have been replaced by Fr:nch doors in the arsa protected by the porch. The
most prowinent fezture ¢ the interior is a fresstanding opsn-string Federal
style stair which rises 2ar the central entrancs and turns across the back
of the stair hall which is open to ths cupola. The first-floor rooms are
crnacantsd by well-execi  :d, Adam-style replacer:nt mantels. To the rear of
ihe louse, separciid on! by a road's width, are two stone dspendencies. Ona2
is an apothecary shop whi ch balonged te the oricinal builder, and the other is
A lecce, two-story bulluing which was hoth o kiichen and servant cuarters.

Bl

Tha <wtensive grounds ab-ut Kermure are particuliarly well terda

I

PO 921.774
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Vincermes (Blliott Houss) (16).

Vincannes, just across the road from St. John-in-the-Wilderness but
hidden from view, is a bracketed I'rame house which is five bays long, two
storiss high, bsneath a gabls rooi. A one-story, hip-roof porch with partic-
ularly interesting bracket treatmant carries across the main facada and into
the large, thras-bay projections at the east and west ends of the cns-~room
deep main block. The six windows which open onto the porch have bsen con-
varted into tall, glazed doors. The molded cornice of the main facade is
broken just above the central bay by a small false gable. The interior of
the center-hall-plan house has largs sliding doors dividing the two front
roons from the hall and is ornamented with medallions and standard, late nins-
teenth century mantels. The stair is simple Greek Revival in style.

Sallie Parker House (28).

Ths late ninetesnth century, Sallie Parker House, east of tha Post Office)
is one of the simplest of the Flat Rock summsr homss. The two-story, rectan-
gular frame house has its entrance in the two-bay gable end. The wids over-
hang of the roof emphasized by the exposed rafter ends which are ornamented
with a sawtooth motif. A ons-story Stick-style porch with scroll sawn
brackats carries across the main facade and past the first bay on each.of the
two-bay sides. '

Enchantment is a two-and-ons-half-stery Stick-style cottage overlooking
Hichland Lake. Its strong vertical lines lead the eye to ths striking queen-
pin truss system in the main facade gable which incorporates a vary large,
pointed fan mades up of wooden blades. The thres-bay gabled main facade has
ths entrance placed in ths westernmost bay and thse regular placement of ths
first and second floor bays contrasts with the irregular placemsnt of the
roomy attic windows and the irregularly placed side bays and projections. Ths

ate rninetesnth century sash, bracketed porches, and eavas are all prominsnt
foaturcs of this well executed late Victorian cottage and wmake 1t the best
rapresantative of the Flat Rock cottages for its period.

Tz Lomdes Placs (Che State Theatre of North Cirolina) (29).

The Lowndes Placs, called Ths Rock, surwes as the green room, administra-
tivs oifice, and a. mnitory of the 1"lat Rock Pla houzs and drama school. Tt is
r,d auite prominantly on ths wsst side of tha hishway newr the center of
1at Rocle ulbtv”Lc Dietrict. ‘Tha tlwo-stery, five-bay house 1s much in
, style as vm2 nearby Llliobt Heuse, the nﬁs+ conspmicious differen-a
the use of sm’%yed eaves wiihioult brackets »nd a ona-bay, g&olu porch at
entral bay of the second floci. 'the theatra itself is housad a shor:

cce northirast f the hoursa.
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Bonclarken (Heidleberg) (27).

Bonclarken consists of paired two-and-one-half-story frams structures
sbutted by twin towers. The bracketed gables of the two main buildings,
pierced by groups of double windows, face Highland Lake below and are givsn
a2 more unified facads by the two towers, located at the east and west cornars
of the building complex. Bonclarken is said to have been bullt in three
stagas--the wast block in 1886, the east block and Stick-st;le porches with
porte cochere in 1892. The three-story towers with open fourth levels, also in
the Stick-style, carry concave, pyramidal roofs. The towers as well as the
connector buildings for the main blocks are sald to have bsan added in 1902.

Saluda Gottases (San Souci) (I4).

Saluda Cottages, savaral miles west of the center of Flat Rock, is a
very large, handsome two-and-ons-half-story Second Empirs house with a three-
story central tower. Ths five-bay main facade has a large flat-roof porte
cochere surmounted by a turned balustrade over the central entrance bay which
is located in the tecwer. The concave mansard roof is surmounted by a most
elaborate and delicate cresting which is highlighted at each corner by a
finial in a similar pattern. The convex tower roof is topped by the sams
crasting.

The interior is characterized by large, heavy mantels with ornate tiles
surrounding the fire opsnings and elaborate metal fire backs. Patterned woods
and tiles are used extensively throughout the houss. There are two stairs in
tha house--ona, a metal circular stair at the east end of the house has a
delicate floral balustrade; the othsr, nsar the center of ths house toward the
rear, is a grand stailr with mirrored archss and various flights which conclude
at the third floor ballroom. The interior is characterized by largs, rambling
spaces and opulence of detail. Saluda Cottages is the most architecturally
ambitious building in Flat Rock. A number of supporting structures rsmain
about Saluda Cottages.

Tranquility (20).

Trancuility, also west of the centar of the district, is a late nineteentlh
century, T-shavzd, twc-and-one-half-story frame house which faces south from
thz top of a hign sharo bluff. A three-story stair tower with a pyramidal
roof rises in the resr {north) angle of the T. The house has a two-story
porch @srous ths west end and another on the south side of the T. 'The house
ig charactirized by a varisty of ornamentation and forms which are playfully

11 executed.

comoinad and w
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Ithue House (2).

?ha Rhus House, on the east side of the district, is a largs two-and-ons -
half-story frame hous? which appuars to be of late nineteenth century date.
The irregular gabled structure featuress a bracksted cornice and two-ov@r-two
sash except for the Flat Rock window doors along the one-story front porch.
There are several interesting outbuildings of both stons and wood.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Flat Rock Historic District is a vast and idyllic area in the
mountains of North Carolina, dotted with well-kept estates centering on
the ambitious summer houses of the prominent Charlestonians who began to
settle there in the early nineteenth century. Vital to the significance
of Flat Rock is the long association with a list of politically and
soclally notable families, names seldom rivalled in the Carolinas.

Flat Rock, located in the southwest section of North Carolina, is
removed from the mainstream of the state's commercial and agricultural
activity. Tourism, howaever, has .a vensrable history thsre since tha area
was sattled largely by wealthy South Carolinians in search of a salubrious
climate in which to vacation while escaping the rigors of low country
summers. There exists, as a physical reminder of Flat Rock history, a
major collection of country estates which represent a unique segment of
Southern social history; these serve as a living record of the scale and
quality of life led by the, affluent of the Carolinas in thes ninstesenth
century. Many are being used today in a manner totally in keeping with
their original intent.

The significance of Flat Rock lies not only in the handsoms estates
and well-pressrved ambisnce of the area, but also in the long associations
with some of the most outstanding individuals and families, primarily
Charlestonians, who settlad or summered there. Extensive information
about the buildinzs and their owners has been amassed by local historians,
and is reflected in the brief historiss of these properties below.

Tiie long prozession of Charlestonians to the cool, healthful mountaing
of ths Flat Fock area began in the early nins lesnth cantury.

Mountain Lodge (1).

Charles Paring, a membar of the well-known banking family of Enzland,
marrict Susan Heyward, the widew of James Heyward of Chorleston, South
Cuarolira, about 1798. Hayward, a brobther of Thomss Haniard who signad the
Declaration of Indeper.icncz ant becrme governor orf South Czrolina, had
le™t his wife a 1ife intercst in his substantial estate. As her hushand,
Bziing becams a prominznt rlce nlanter in South Carolira. fnxious to
protect his wife's hesi szught o4 more moderaie ciimat2 than that of
trs swoimps and Tields of & low couaniry rice plantaition and founs it io
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Flat Rock in 1027 whare he purchased substantial acreage and baegan construction
of a home, Mountain Lodge, ths first Flat Rock house buillt by membars of the
Charleston group. Mr. Baring is said to hawve developad his property along the
linss of an English estate: extensive lands with a manor house, formal gardens,
a porter's lodge at the entrance gate, a deer park enclosed by a high fence,
and a private chapel with a parsonage.

Mountain Lodge was built on a 300-acre tract of land which was purchased
by Baring in his wife's name on September 10, 1827. At Mrs. Baring's death in
1845, her estate in South Carolina reverted to the Heyward family, but ths
Flat Rock property, then in excess of 3,000 acres, passed to her husband. In
1853, however, Charles Baring sold Mountain Lodge to Edward L. Trenholm in ordgr
to reconcile a massive indebtedness. Trenholm, ths second resident of Mountain
Lodge, was a member of the cotton mercantile firm in Liverpool and Charleston
that owned the ship Alabama, a famous blockade runnsr during ths Civil War.

After the Barings settled at Flat Rock, other Charlestonians bsgan to
follow their example.

Argyls (2).

Judze Mitchell King, a prominent lawyer and judge in Charleston, purchased
1,390 acres of land in Flat Rock from John Davis on October 12, 1830, ". . .
including the dwelling house in which I [Davis] now reside, the offices, saw
mills, and all othsr dwellings and improvements. . . ." It is undsterminsd
whether the Davis house is the central core of Argyle or perhaps the kitchan,
or if indeed the Davis house remains. In any case, Judge King was the second
Charlestonian to build a house in Flat Rock. Like Charles Baring, Judge King
added other tracts to his land holdings until he owned several thousand acres
in what is now Hendsrson County. Judge King died in 1862, and Argyle has
remained in the King family; Alexander King, a great-grandson, now resides at
Argyle for part of sach year.

St. John-in-the-Wildarnsss (3).

The congregation of St. John-in-the-Wilderness was establishad on August
27, 1836, whan Charles and Susan Baring deedsd their private chapsl and its
grounds to the Eriscopal Church. The chapel, constructed by the Barings in
1633, was enlargzd oy the church in 1852 to nearly its present form. It is
the oldest church in the Episcopal Diocess of Western North Carolina. Ths
cometary surrounding the church contains the graves of three families of
signas of the Daclaration of Indspsndence (Heywards, Middletons, and
Pulledges); the srave of C. G. Mecminger, secratary of ths Treacury of tha
Confedesrals Stai=s; and those of members of ths da Choisuel Tawlly, prominent
in the history of Fronce, and other notables.

AP0 971774




Form 10-300a UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE

(July 1969) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE North Carolina

i

b, s

MATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES |counTY

INVENTORY - HOMINATION FORM forderoon___
FOR NPS USE ONLY

ENTRY NUMBER DATE

(Continuation Sheet)

[ i omr Sl writeiag)

Gonnemara (Rock Hill) (5).

Designated a National Historic Site becaunse of ils association with Carl
Sanburg, who lived there from 19)5 until his death in 1967, Connemara was
built in 1838-1839 by Christophsr Gustavus Msmminger, later secretary of the
treasury of the Confederats States, on land purchased from Charles Baring in
1838. Memminger called the place Rock Hill. The property remained in his
possession until his death in 1888. An intermsdiate owner of the property,
Captain Ellison Adger Smyth, prominent textile executive, changed the name
from Rock Hill to Connsmara.

Beaumont (6).

Andrew Johnstona, a rice planter from Gsorgetown, South Carolina, pur-
chased the original 257 acres of Beaumont in 1839. Johnstons was shot by
"Bushwhackers" at Beaumont in June of 186lL. Through ths ysars Beaumont has
peen sxpanded and remodeled extensively by o succession of owners.

Flat Rock Mill (23).

Ths Flat Rock mill property was acquirsd on December 21, 1830, by Peter
A. Summey, who operated a small mill there until 1850. The mill passed throug)
several ownerships before the turn of the century, when William Jordan con-
structed much of the present building and installed a large overshot wheel

which remains in place. In ths 1940s ths property was converted to its presentg

use as a motel-apartment complex.

Tall Trees (Greenlawn) (22).
was

Tall Trees or (Greenlawn),/built about 1£),0 by Arthur M. Huger, a descendant

of the first Hugusnot to settle in Charlsstci, on an 80-acre tract given to
him by Judge Mitchell King, his father-in-law. After Huger's death the place
was ownad by Governor Thomas Bennett of Soulh Carolina.

Many Pines (16).

Many Pines was built in 168L7 by James T'ringle, a descendant of Robsrt
Pilngls, who was one <7 th3 early major lanicwnars of South Carolina. Many
Piras nas always nad strong tics with Charle :ton, and is owned by Mrs.
Avgustine T. Smyth whosz daughter, Frances I mmunds, has directed the preserva-
ticn efforts of the Historic Chizrleston Fou: ‘ation.

o

Chante Loupe (11).

hriel St. Xavie:
.al in arranging
ze., His wi.

Cohinteloupa was tuilt in t¢hl by ths C. it Josspn Marie Gz
d. Cho! wel, a nophow of ths Thize de Choisu  who was instrumer
1 marriage of Marie Antoniet’ @ of Austiria 2 Louls XVI of Fra:n

b

2u. 2o, Li. Gol, Charlas Jde Clovisusl, ure @ ried in ths chnech ard of

— — RPN
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St. John-in-the-Wilderness at Flat Rock. The latter died cf wounds received
in Virginia in 1862 where he served with the saventh Louisiana Regiment of
the Confederate Army. De Choisuel sold the property to David Urquhardon June
li, 1858. It has been enlarged by subsequent owners.

01ld Post Office (15).

The structure known as the Old Flat Rock Post Office was built abcut 1846
by Peter Stradley, a blacksmith, who was appointed postmaster in 1845. The
building served in that capacity until 1877, and intermittently from 1879 to
1901, 1913 to 1922, and 1953 to 1965.

Tensriffe (1l).

Dr. Jd. G. Schoolbread of Charleston built Teneriffe and named it after
ong of the Canary Islands. The Schoolbreads had been coming to Flat Rock
since 1852, but the exact building date is unknown. In 1883 the estate was
sold to Charles Albert Hill, an Englishman who was a wealthy Charleston cotton
broker. The house took on its present appearance in 1903 when Hugh Delacy-
Vincent, a member of Mr. Hill's firm, remodeled it.

0ld Rectory (17).

The 01d Rectory of St. John-in-the-Wilderness was built in 1853-185l.
Minutes of the vestry of the church, signed by the Reverend Charles Cotesworth
Pinckney, confirm the construction dates and the fact that the building
committee consisted of Izard Middleton, Edward Trenholm, and Andrew Johnstone.
They also show that C. G. Msmminger of the vestry, was reimbursed for payment
of the architect's fes of $125.00.

Rutledgs Cottage (7).

When Dr. Mitchell Campbell King, son of Judge Mitchell King, completed
his medical studies in South Carolina, he established a medical practice in
Flat Rock about 1840, which continued until his death in 1901. As a young
man Dr. King studied at the University of Gosttinger in Germany where he was
a fellow student and close friend of Otto von Bismarck. Thair correspondencs,
which coentiruad for many years, is in tha Library of Congress.

The first Flat Rock house built and occupniled by Dr. King was known as The
Cottage and later as Rutledge Cottaga. It was constructed socon after he
escablished himzalf in Flat Rock, and reflects the architecturalinflusnce of
German country nouses of the period. The Cottago was Dr. King's home until
1857 when he mos2d to Glenroy (Kenmure), a 1irge hous : he 011lt in that year.
The grounds on which The Cottage wac conctru.ted beloiged to Dr. King's father
until 1656 when Judgs King formally deedsd 223 acres v his son. On Octobsr
21, 1857, Elizai=2th Pinckney Rutledre, daugh'ar of Friderick Rutledge of
Harntori Plantation, South Carolina, purchasc.i The Cot - age from Lr». King.
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Dunroy (10).

Dunroy was built in 1850 by David Williams, a rice planter from Camden,
South Carolina. His wife was the sister of May Boykin Chestnut, author of
"Diary from Dixie," in which she described her life during the war years when
her husband was a member of Jefferson Davis's cabinet. Mrs. James Rutledge
of Charleston and her daughter, Mrs. Julius Heyward, descendants of a signer
of the Declaration of Independence, were successive owners of Dunroy. Major
Genaral Campbell King, grandson of Judge Mitchell King, acquirsd ths estatse
when he retired from his last command in 1933. His son, Dr. Duncan Ingraham
Campuaell King, is the current ownsr.

Wood ield Inn (Farmer's Hotel) (12).

In 1847 several prominent landowners in Flat Rock purchased four hundred
acres in the center of the community '"with the design of promoting the
estsblishment of a good, commodious tavern at or near the Saluda Road." Con-
struction of the impressive structure was comple ted by 1852 under the diractioj
of Lonry Tudor Farmer, who purchased the property in 1853 and operated the
famous old inn, under the name "Farmer's Hotel,'" until his death in 1883. A
later owner, Mrs. Annie T. Martin, changed the name to the Woodfield Inn.

Tre::holm-Rhett Honss (13).

Tha Trenholm-Rhett House was built by Charles Baring in 185, shortly
before his death. It became the home of George Trenholm, second secretary of
the Confederate Treasury. Henrietta Rhett acquired the house in 1876. She
was a member of the Rhett family of Charleston, which included Colonel William|
Rhe+t, who led the capture of the pirate, Stede Bonnat, companion of "Black-
beard;" and Robert Barnwell Rhett, owner of The Charleston Msrcury, who is
calizd the "Father of Secession'" for having written the first draft of the
Orciinance of Secession. His son, Andrew Burnett Rhett, married Henrietta,
dav-hter of Governor Aiken of South Carolina, in Flat Rock in 1863. Both
Harnrietta and her fathsr spsnt many years in Flat Rock. She was the grand-
mot!l:r of Barnett Maybank, senator and governor of South Carolina. Ths house,
cur-ontly owned by Our Lady of the Hills Camp, has fallen into disrepair.

Ker ure (Glenroy) (9).

When Dr. Mitchsll Campbsll King, son of Judge Mitchell King, built his
la: » new house about 1850, he ramed it Glenroy. After Dr. King's death,
Gle¢ oy remained in the possession of his daughter until 1903. W. Gordon
Mci: b2, who bought it in 1920, renamed the place Kenmure and addad the columne :
po. 1. McCabe, descendant of (G=orge Tavlor, a signer of .the Declaration of
Jr: endence, passad the estats to his & n, Gordon McCabs, vice-president and
div ztor of J. P. Stevens Texti's Co., (Creenville, South Carolina.

GPO U217,




Form 10-300a UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE
59 NATIONAL PARK SERVICE .
(July 1959) . North Carolins

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORICPLACES |[counTY

INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM llenderson
FOR NPS USE ONLY

ENTRY NUMBER DATE

(Continuation Sheet)

! (Numbec all antriag)

v

Vincennes (Elliott House) (18).

Colonel William Elliott, United States senator from Bsaufort, South
Carolina, built his summer home in Flat Rock in 1877 near the site of his
fathar's summer dwelling, now gone. TFor years it was known simply as the
Elliott place. William E. Hartman, the present owner, has restored the house
and named it Vincennes.

Enchantment (19).

Enchantment was built about 1687 by Dr. Allord Memminger, son of C. G.
Memminger. - Dr. Memmingsr studied medicine in Germany and the houss is said
to reflect German country styles. His niece, Mary Wilkinson Middleton,
married Robert E. Lee ITI, grandson of the general, and lived in this house
for many years.

The Rock or The Lowndes Place (The State Theatre of North Carolina) (25).

Richard Henry Lowndes, a South Carolina rice planter, bought a tract of
land from Charles Baring in 1847 which.contained the house originally built
as the rectory for St. John-in-the-Wildarness. The house, which has since
burned, was named "The Diamond in the Desert" by the Lowndes. On the south
part of this tract Richard I. Lowndes, son of Richard, built a house he called
The Rock in 1885. The housé came by its name because it is near the rock out-
cropping from which the community takes its name. The Vagabond School of the
Drama, Inc., acquired the structure in 1956 and uses it as an administrative
office building and dormitory in its operation of the Flat Rock Playhouse and
Drama School. In'1961 the General Assembly of North Carolina referred to this
summer theatre as the "State Theatre of North Carolina."

Bonclarken (Heidleberg) (27).

In 1885 Dr. Arthur R. Guerard purchased land from the Lowndes family and
constructed a three-story, Stick-style house said to be patternad after a
Buropean chalet. He named the structure, which overlooked Highland Laks,
Heidlebsrg. Encountering financial difficulties, he doubled the size of the
building and operated it as a hotel and later as a sanatarium. Neither of
these commercial venturss proved successful, and Dr. Gusrard sold the propsrty
and moved to Nsw York. Since 1921, the Associated Reformed Presbyterian
Church has owned the structure and grounds as part of its Summsr Conferenca
Canter, Bonclarken.

Saluda Cotta-as (Sans Souci) ().

Saluda Cottages takes its namo from origins predating the prasent house.
T.ocated on the Saluda Road, the estate cinsisted of a group of cottages and
was named for the rozd and this group of houses. Count de Choisuzl purchased

5PO 921.724
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Saluda Cottages from Charles Baring in 1836 and built a larger house. Hs
occupied the property as a summer home until 1841. After successive ownershipd
by Willinghams, Memmingsrs, Pincknays, and Middletons, in 1888 it became the
summar home of Rudolph Seigling, owner of Ths News and Courier of Charleston.
Seigling made extensive alterations which made Saluda Cottages the magnificent]
flamboyant Second Empire house it is today. He called it Sans Souci, but the
current ownsrs, Mr. and Mrs. L. Campbell Boyd, call it Saluda Cottages.

Tranquility (20).

Edward Memminger, son of C. G. Memminger, built Tranquility in 1890 for
his bride.  Forced by i1l health to give up his law practics in Charleston,
Edward turned to botany. At Tranquility he established a garden spot with
many unusual plants. Upon his death, his collection of about 1,000 rare
specimens went to the University of North Carolina.

Piedmont (8).

Piedmont, which burnsed in 1949, was built by Reverend Charles Cotesworth
Pinckney of Charleston, son of ths ambassador to the Court of St. James
appointed by George Washington. Piedmont has long bsen associated with the
prominent Middleton name of South Carolina. A smaller house has been rebuilt
on ths site.

24
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2. Licatlion

Beginning at the junction of the Southsrn Railroad track and S.R. 1783,
on the east side of Flat Rock, go west along S.R. 17863. Continuing with S.R.
1825 to the junction with U.S. 25, turn south on U.S. 25 to S.R. 1166 and
along S.R. 1166 to S.R. 116l. Go west on S.R. 116l to a point just north of
the junction of S.R. 1164 and S.R. 1165. TFrom this point the boundary runs
in a straight line, southwest, to Mud Creek. TFollowing Mud Creek south to a
point northwest of Tensriffe Mountain, go northwest, in a straight line, to
S.R. 1127--just south of S.R. 1139, 12,5, and 1127. Continue south with S.R.
1127 to the junction of S.R. 1123 and go east on S.R. 1123 to Twin Bridges.
From this point, follow a line directly east to the top of Glassy Mountain.
From Glassy Mountain the boundary runs in a straight line, southwest to a
point west of McCabe's Pond, thence directly east to U.S. 25, then north,
northsast to the junction of S.R. 1812 and S.R. 1865. Go east with S.R. 1812
to the railroad and north with ths railroad track to the beginning.

<0 g2t.7 248




v
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Research by Charles Creer Sutllemyre , survey cpecialist, based on research
supplied by Flat Rock Historical Association; architectural descriois
by Charles Greer Suttlemyre. ’ + deseription
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Mountain Lodge

Argyle

St. John-in-the-Wilderness
Saluda Cottages (Sans Soucti)
Connemara (Rock Hill)

Beaumont

Rutledge Cottage

Piedmont

Kenmure (Glenroy)

Dunroy

Chanteloupe

Woodfield Inn (Farmer's Hotel)
Trenhalm-Rhett House

Tensriffe

01ld Post Office

Many Pines

St. John-in-the-Wilderness Rectory
Vincennes (Elliott House)
Enchantment

Tranquility

Hillgay

Tall Trees (Greenlawn)

Flat Rock Mill

Rhus Housse

The Lowndes Place (The State Theatrs of North Carolina)
Five Oaks (Grimshaw Houss)
Bonclarken (Heidleberg)

Sallie Parker
Diamond-in-the-Desert
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Hendarson County Records, Hendsrson County Courthouse, Hendersonville, North
Carolina, Office of the Rezister of Deeds (Subgroups: Deeds, Wills).

tenderson County Records, Division of Archives and History, Raleigh, North
Carolina (Subgroups: Deeds, Wills). ‘

Marsh, Kenneth F. and Blanche. Historic Flat Rock: Where The 01ld South
Lingers. Asheville: Biltmore Press, 196l.

Patton, Sadie Smothsrs. Flat Rock: The Little Charleston of ths Mountains.
Asheville: Church Printing Co., no date.

The Story of Henderson County. Asheville: The Miller Printing Company, 19),7.

Ray, Lenoir. Postmarks: A History of Hendsrson County, North Carolina, 1767-
1968. Chicago: Adams Press, 1970.
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